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From: Katrina Sutphin <ksutphin@fec.qov>

Sent: Wed, Jan 8, 2020 2:05 pm

Subject: Your Freedom of Information Act Request to the Federal Election Commission
FOIA [2019-089]

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Re: Your Freedom of Information Act Request to the Federal Election Commission
FOIA [2019-089]

This email is in response to the request you filed for information under the Freedom of
Information Act (FOIA) dated and received by the Federal Election Commission’s (FEC)
FOIA Requester Service Center on July 22, 2019. Specifically, you requested:

A copy of an electronic search for emails resulting from an electronic search of
email TO and/or FROM and/or CC the following individuals: Alec Palmer, Kate
Higginbotham, Patricia Orrock, John Quinlan, Judith Ingram, Duane Pugh for
emails which contain the words COMMISSIONER and APPOINT.

We have searched our records and located responsive documents consisting of a total
of 112 pages. We are releasing these documents to you without redaction. We have
withheld 523 pages of responsive records in their entirety under FOIA Exemption 5.
Please note that our response to your request does not include documents or
publications publicly available on our website or compilations of publicly available news
articles. Accordingly, your FOIA request has been granted in part.

The responsive documents which are included in this response are also available, for
your convenience, on our website at the following link:

https://www.fec.gov/about/committee-on-house-administration-april-2019-questions/

Exemption 5 protects from disclosure inter- or intra-agency memoranda or letters that
would not be available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with the
agency, including documents covered by the attorney work-product, deliberative
process, and attorney-client privileges. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(5).

You may contact our FOIA Public Liaison, Christine McClarin at (202) 694-1485, for any
further assistance and to discuss any aspect of your request. Additionally, you may
contact the Office of Government Information Services (OGIS) at the National Archives
and Records Administration to inquire about the FOIA mediation services they offer.
The contact information for OGIS is as follows: Office of Government Information
Services, National Archives and Records Administration, 8601 Adelphi Road-OGIS,
College Park, Maryland 20740-6001, e-mail at ogis@nara.gov; telephone at 202-741-
5770; toll free at 1-877-684-6448; or facsimile at 202-741-57609.



mailto:ksutphin@fec.gov
https://www.fec.gov/about/committee-on-house-administration-april-2019-questions/
mailto:ogis@nara.gov

You may appeal any adverse FOIA determination. Any such appeal must be filed in
writing and should follow the guidelines set forth in 11 C.F.R. § 4.8. If you have any
guestions, please contact the FOIA Requester Service Center at ogis@nara.gov, or
(202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,
Katrina Sutphin
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Awaiting Reason to Believe Consideration.” See Document A.' These memoranda and
accompanying motions included detailed charts and deadlines for appropriate action to be taken
by the Commission.

Although the priority motions were not approved by the Commission, the charts and
method of disclosure used in those motions were adopted in the amendments to Directive 68 on
December 14,2017.? The amended directive, which was unanimously approved by the
Commission, greatly improved transparency and accountability regarding the Commission’s
performance on enforcement matters. Each Status of Enforcement report is now placed on the
Commission’s website and available to the public in redacted form within 15 days of circulation
of the report to the Commission. In fact, the Committee included a chart from a recent Status of
Enforcement document in Question 20.

The Commission still has not, however, approved procedures to speed up the
enforcement process as proposed in the priority motions. For example, as indicated in the charts
in the Status of Enforcement reports, enforcement matters are often delayed for several months
or even years due to the numerous holdover requests by Commissioners. I believe there should
be strict limits regarding the terms of holdover requests, and I will be asking the Commission to
adopt further amendments to Directive 68 to establish deadlines for the timely processing of
enforcement matters before the Commission. See Document B.

The Commission’s Audit Process

To improve the efficiency of processing audits and avoid losing potential violations to the
statute of limitations, I believe that Directive 70 should be amended to require that no audit may
be commenced unless, at the outset, Audit staff submits to the Commission a comprehensive
plan of how it intends to complete the audit in a sufficient amount of time. Such a plan would
include (a) an analysis of the need for the audit, (b) a projection of the time and effort to
complete the audit, and (c) a conclusion as to whether the audit can be completed — including
transfer to OGC for further enforcement proceedings as appropriate — prior to 18 months before
the statute of limitations starts to run.

Legislative Cures

The massive amount of money that has been injected into the electoral process resulting
from Citizens United and its judicial progeny has left the Commission with a lack of clear
jurisdiction to regulate in this new area. The Commission is currently confronted with regulatory
issues involving unlimited amounts of corporate and union funds spent independently (including
money from foreign sources), including how these sources should be disclosed and the extent to
which they should be disclosed; I believe that Congress should pass legislation to address these
issues. Some aspects of current bills before Congress are laudable to the extent they directly

! The document is also available on the Commission’s website at https://www.fec.gov/resources/cms-

content/documents/mtgdoc 1753-a.pdf.

2 The amended directive is available on the Commission’s website at https:/www.fec.gov/resources/cms-
content/documents/directive_68.pdf



target the current problems associated with so-called “Super PACs,” “dark money” and the
influx of foreign spending on American elections.

FEC Composition

Other aspects of pending legislation address concerns about Commission indecision, as
manifested in frequent deadlocks on enforcement and policy matters. For example, one proposal
would modify the structure of the Commission through the FECA so that the Commission would
be comprised of an odd number of Commissioners with no single party holding a majority of
seats. The idea is that deadlocked votes might be avoided if there were, say, five Commissioners
with a majority of three required for approving most decisions. I believe there is greater wisdom
in retaining the structure that exists now; i.e., that most formal actions require the approval of
four Commissioners, which must include at least one vote from a Commissioner not of the same
party as the other three. If this were not the case, there could very well be accusations of partisan
motives, whether or not justified, based upon one’s view of the political leanings of the “tie-
breaking” Commissioner. In many instances, Commission deadlocks can be instructive in the
sense that persons or parties that come before the Commission, and others who are interested,
can learn from the arguments presented and then determine how to conduct themselves in the
absence of formal guidance.

In closing, even though exercises such as these frequently raise discomforting views and
negative comments, we should not lose sight of the fact that the FEC, with all its flaws, still
remains the finest disclosure agency worldwide regarding campaign finance information. No
other agency in the United States or any other country provides the scope of disclosure that the
FEC ensures on a timely and accurate basis.

Thank you once again for this opportunity to submit this response; I am happy to
supplement my answers or to provide further information as needed.

Sincerely,

Wt pJootthe,

Steven T. Walther
Commissioner

Attached documents (2)




























































































































We are particularly sensitive to the constitutional rights of Americans to speak and
associate freely, and we understand that overly aggressive regulatory and enforcement actions
could harm those rights. The Supreme Court has said, “Where the First Amendment is
implicated, the tic goes to the speaker, not the censor.”? Thus, we should issue new regulations
only when they are clearly necessary, and authorize investigations of Americans’ political
activities only upon a showing that the allegations against them are based on more than
speculation and concern actions that, if proven, would be clearly prohibited. We administer and
enforce the law as written by Congress and interpreted by the courts, not as others wish it to be.

While we welcome and encourage a meaningful debate on the weighty questions we must
decide, we caution against overly simplistic attempts to evaluate Commission performance based
on numbers with limited value. If numbers are to be considered, they must not mislead. Thus, a
rational and fair-minded analysis of Commission actions based on the Commission’s voting
history must take into account the total universe of votes taken by the Commission. Focusing
only on the number of “deadlocked” votes in Matters Under Review considered in Executive
Session automatically limits the scope of such analysis to only the most complex and
controversial enforcement cases. It necessarily excludes all votes in enforcement matters
approved by Commissioners on tally, or handled through another mechanism — such as the
thousands of matters resolved through the administrative fines program or the Office of
Alternative Dispute Resolution — or dismissed under the Enforcement Priority System.

Moreover, the number of deadlocked votes does not correlate with the outcome of an
enforcement action. Commissioners regularly call for votes on motions in Executive Session
even when they expect the motions to fail; this can help to create a record of Commissioners’
positions on issues, which not only is part of the normal give-and-take prior to reaching
consensus but may also provide useful guidance to the public. Thus, a matter with deadlocked
votes often reflects the opposite of dysfunction: Commissioners staking out their ideal positions
while on the path to compromise.

Take for example MUR 7122 (American Pacific International Capital, Inc., ez al.). In
this matter, Commissioners made 13 different motions, more than half of which failed, before
ultimately voting to approve conciliation agreements in which the respondents agreed to pay
nearly $1,000,000 in fines. The deadlocked votes were a necessary part of the deliberative
process that achieved a consensus result.

We do not mean to suggest that consensus is achieved in nearly every matter. But true
deadlocks, in which at least four Commissioners cannot agree on a path forward, occur
infrequently and reflect principled disagreements on the proper interpretation and application of
the law. This exercise of independent judgment is generally far more challenging than simply

2 FECv. Wisconsin Right to Life, 551 U.S. 449, 474 (2007).
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From:John Quinlan

To:Nida Awan
Sent:2019-05-03T16:16:18.0000000Z
Subject:FW: Many thanks

Here are the answers to the questions. See number 8, which says that FEC will post a position by early May.

John Quinlan

Chief Financial Officer
Federal Election Commission
1050 First Street NE
Washington DC 20463
Phone 202-694-1217

Cell 202-213-7686
jquinlan@fec.gov

From: Duane Pugh

Sent: Thursday, May 02, 2019 11:29 AM

To: Alec Palmer <APalmer@fec.gov>; Lisa Stevenson <LStevenson@fec.gov>; John Quinlan <JQuinlan@fec.gov>; Patricia Orrock
<POrrock@fec.gov>; Katie Higginbothom <KHigginbothom@fec.gov>; Kevin Deeley <kdeeley@fec.gov>; Neven Stipanovic
<NStipanovic@fec.gov>; Dayna Brown <dbrown@fec.gov>; Laura Sinram <LSinram@fec.gov>; Lauren H Lien <LLien@fec.gov>;
Krista Roche <KRoche @fec.gov>; Rhiannon Magruder <RMagruder@fec.gov>; Debbie Chacona <dchacona@fec.gov>; Peter
Blumberg <pblumberg@fec.gov>; Stephen Gura <SGura@fec.gov>; Lorenzo Holloway <lholloway@fec.gov>; Amy Kort
<akort@fec.gov>; Rebecca Hough <RHough@fec.gov>; Gilbert A. Ford <GFord@fec.gov>; Robert Kahn <RKahn@fec.gov>; Robert
Knop <rknop@fec.gov>; Lawrence Calvert <LCalvert@fec.gov>; Jeff Jordan <jjordan@fec.gov>; Tony Buckley <tbuckley@fec.gov>;
Kevin P. Hancock <KHancock@fec.gov>; Gregory Baker <gbaker@fec.gov>; Amy Pike <APike @fec.gov>; Kristina Portner
<KPortner@fec.gov>; Carla Smith <CaSmith@fec.gov>; Erica Lee <elee@fec.gov>; Kendrick Smith <ksmith@fec.gov>; Sarah
Rozensky <srozensky @fec.gov>; Theodore Lutz <TLutz@fec.gov>

Subject: Many thanks

Many thanks to this entire team of folks who contributed greatly to preparing the Commission’s response to its oversight
committee’s many questions! It was a genuine team effort, with folks throughout the agency turning away from their
normal duties, often to prepare a rushed and yet scrutinized answer. Each of your efforts contributed to the fine products
attached, and I think we can all be proud of the work we did in compiling them. I’m sure there were others who also
contributed, and I ask you to thank them for me too.

Thanks,
Duane

J. Duane Pugh Jr.

Director

Congressional, Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs
FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
dpugh@fec.gov

(202) 694-1002










16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Inspections had 50 recommendations that still required Commission follow-up as of
August 2018. This includes 23 recommendations that have been 7 years outstanding
(2010 Follow-up Audit of Privacy and Data Protection); 1 recommendation that is 6 years
outstanding (2010 Follow-up Audit of Procurement and Contract Management); 7
recommendations that are 5 years outstanding (Inspection of the FEC’s Disaster
Recovery Plan and Continuity of Operations Plans); 3 recommendations that are 4 years
outstanding (Audit of the FEC’s Office of Human Resources); 4 other recommendations
that are 4 years outstanding (Inspection of FEC’s Compliance with FMFIA/OMB A- -
123); 9 recommendations that-are 2 years outstanding (Audit of the FEC Telework
Programs); and 3 recommendations that are 9 months outstanding (Required Review
Under the DATA Act). Why are these recommendations still outstanding? Please provide
the Committee with a status update on each of these recommendations.

Please provide a summary of any improvements that the Commission has made to its IT
systems since Chinese hackers crashed them during the 2013 government shutdown.
What is the Commission doing to address and anticipate future problems?

In the Chair’s opening remarks at the February 7, 2019 open meeting, the Chair noted
that the Commission has “hundreds of cases on our enforcement docket, 326 to be
precise, over 50 already imperiled by a looming statute of limitations.”

a. How many cases are on the enforcement docket as of the date of this letter?
b. How many cases are imperiled by a looming statute of limitations?
c. How does the Commission plan to address the hundreds of cases?

d. How often does the Commission plan to meet for the remainder 0of 2019 in
Executive Session to dispose of these cases?

How many Matters Under Review are considered in a typical Executive Session?

According to the “Status of Enforcement — Fiscal Year 2018” memorandum from the
Office of General Counsel, there was a caseload of 317 cases, including 113 “inactive”
cases” and 204 “active” cases. What distinguishes an “inactive” case from an “active”
case?

According to the “Status of Enforcement — Fiscal Year 2018 memorandum from the
Office of General Counsel to the Commission, of First General Counsel’s Reports
Pending with the Commission, numerous cases — including one dating back to 2012 —
have been pending for years and have been “held over” on multiple dates. See, for
example, the following excerpt from the memorandum:
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25. How many Matters Under Review has the Commission closed since January 1,20127

26. How many and what percentage of the Matters Under Review in Question 25 were
resolved exclusively on a tally vote?

27. For purposes of this question, assume a “deadlocked vote” is an equally divided vote of
the Commission or any other vote that lacks four affirmative votes. Of Matters Under
Review considered in Executive Session since January 1, 2012 and that are now closed,
how many and what percentage of the MURSs included at least one deadlocked vote of the
Commission during Executive Session? Please provide, categorized by year since 2012,
the count and percentages. Please also provide the MUR number for each MUR that
included at least one deadlocked vote.

28. For purposes of this question, assume a “deadlocked vote” is an equally divided vote of
the Commission or any other vote that lacks four affirmative votes. Of Matters Under
Review considered in Executive Session since January 1, 2012 and that are now closed,
how many and what percentage of the MURs deadlocked on all votes taken during
Executive Session, other than a vote to close the file and send the appropriate letter(s)?
Please provide, categorized by year since 2012, the count and pércentages. Please also
provide the MUR numbers and MUR subject of the cases that deadlocked on all votes
taken in Executive Session (other than a vote to close the file and send the appropriate
letter(s)). :

29. Once the Commission deadlocks on a recommendation from the Office of General
Counsel, is it the Commission’s position that the Office of General Counsel should not
make the same recommendation in an analogous case?

30. Since the Supreme Court’s decision in Citizens United, how many times has the
Commission found a violation of the coordination regulations? Please provide the Matter
Under Review numbers.

31. Since January 1, 2012, how many enforcement cases has the FEC pursued through
litigation after attempting conciliation?

32. What is the current relationship between the FEC and the Department of Justice
regarding enforcement matters? Do FEC enforcement staff have the ability to consult
with Department of Justice staff where appropriate?

33. How many rulemakings has the Commission completed since January 1, 2012, excluding
Civil Monetary Penalties Inflation Adjustments? Please provide a brief summary of cach
new rule. '

34, Please provide a brief summary, including the current status of Commission action, for
each Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (ANPRM) that the Commission has
opened or reopened since January 1, 2012. In the summary, please provide the status of

- the Commission’s deliberations on these matters, including but not limited to whether
and when it expects to take further action on each ANPRM.
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35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Please provide a brief summary, including the current status of Commission action, for
each Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NPRM) that the Commission has opened or
reopened since January 1, 2012. In the summary, please provide the status of the
Commission’s deliberations on these matters, including but not limited to whether and
when it expects to take further action on each NPRM.

Please provide a brief summary, including the current status of Commission action, of
any petition for rulemaking for which the Commission approved a Notice of Availability
since January 1, 2012. In the summary, please provide the status of the Commission’s
deliberations on these matters, including but not limited to whether and when it expects
to take further action on each petition.

What further action does the Commission anticipate taking on REG 2011-02 concerning
internet communication disclaimers? When does it anticipate taking this further action, if
any?

How many litigation cases has the Commission appealed in the past 10 years after an
adverse court ruling? :

For the past decade, how many requests for advisory opinions lacked four affirmative
votes to provide an answer? Please provide the numbers and advisory opinion citations
by year.

Do you view advisory opinions as binding on analogously-situated parties?

In the Minutes of an Open Meeting from Sept. 15, 2016, then-Chair Petersen stated that,
without objection, the General Counsel’s Office was “directed to prioritize cases
involving allegations of foreign influence.” What is the status of this direction to the
Office of General Counsel? How many cases have been prioritized and what is their
disposition?

Besides efforts to encourage voluntary compliance with the law and deadlocks on

_ ‘enforcements matters, what action has the Commission taken to address the threat of

43.

44.

45.

46.

foreign interference in American elections?
What have been the effects of Directive 70 on the audit process?

Have any Commissioners put forward proposals to change any aspect of Directive 70 on
processing audits?

What is the average time that it takes to complete an audit under Directive 70?7

What are the greatest challenges to the Commission’s ability to fulfill its mission and
mandate? Each Commissioner is invited to answer this question separately.
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